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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of  
Saritow Spinning Mills Limited will be held on Friday, September 19, 2025 at 10:30 
A.M., at 06-Egerton Road, Opposite LDA Plaza, Lahore to transact the following 
business: - 
 

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on 
November 27, 2024.  
 

2. To receive and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts for the year ended 
June 30, 2025 along with Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon. 

 

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of next 
Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration. 

 

4. Any other business with the permission of the Chair. 
 
                        By Order of the Board 
 
 

Lahore: August 29, 2025                         Company Secretary 
 
Notes: 

1. Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
September 13, 2025 to September 19, 2025 (both days inclusive). Physical 
transfers/CDS transactions ID’s received in order at “Company Registrar 
office M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited”, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Model 
Town, Lahore on or before September 12, 2025 will be treated in time. 

 
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting may appoint another 

Member as his/her proxy. Proxies in order to be effective, must be received 
at 10-G, Mushtaq Ahmed Gurmani Road, Gulberg-II, Lahore, the Registered 
Office of the Company not later than forty-eight hours before the time for 
holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed. 
 

3. Members whose shares are deposited with Central Depository System are 
requested to bring their original National Identity Cards or original Passports 
along with their Account Numbers in Central Depository System for 
attending the meeting. 

 
4. Members are requested to notify the Company change in their addresses, if any. 

 

5. Transmission Of Annual Report 

In terms of approval of the shareholders of the Company in their Annual 
General Meeting held on October 27, 2023 and pursuant to SECP's 
Notification No. SRO 389(1)/2023 dated 21st March, 2023. The Annual 
Report for the financial year ended on 30th June, 2025 of the Company 
containing inter alia the audited financial statements, auditors' report, 
directors, and chairman's reports thereon may be viewed and downloaded by 
following QR code and weblink: 

 



 

Weblink QR Code 

https://saritowspinningmillsltd.com/annualreports.aspx  

 
 

The Annual Report has been emailed to those shareholders who have 
provided their valid email address to the Company. 

 

The shareholders who wish to receive a hard copy of the Annual Report may 

send to the Company Secretary/Share Registrar, the Standard Request 

Form available on the website of the Company saritowspinningmillsltd.com. 

The Company then will provide a free of Cost hard copy of Annual Report to 

the shareholders within one week of the request. 

6. Replacement Of Physical Shares Into CDC Account 

 
Members, who hold physical shares, are advised to convert their shares into 
electronic form in terms of section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017. 
 

7. Participation in the AGM through Video link Facility    
 

The SECP through its Circular No. 4 dated February 15, 2021 & Circular No. 
6 dated March 03, 2021 has directed listed companies to arrange 
participation of shareholders in Annual General Meeting through Video Link 
Facility in addition to allowing physical attendance by the members. The 
members who are willing to attend and participate in the AGM can do so 
through video-link via smartphones, computers, tablets, etc. To attend the 
AGM through video-link, members are requested to get their following 
particulars registered by sending an email or WhatsApp at the 
number/address given below, at least 48 hours before the time of the AGM, 
and download video-link from https//zoom.us/download. 

 

 

Name 
 

 

Folio/CDS Account No. 

 

CNIC No 

 

Cell phone 

 

Email 

     

 
 

Signature of Member 
 

WhatsApp Email 

 
0321-8561366 

 
umer.islam@saigols.com 

 
Upon receipt of requests, the video-link login credentials will be shared with the 
interested shareholders on their email addresses or WhatsApp messages. The 
members can send their comments/suggestions related to the agenda items of the 
meeting through the above-mentioned means. 




  LDA Plaza  

 -06  10:30  202519  (39th)  







   2024  27 1

  2025  30  2

 3

  4

 2025  29 







 1-K   202519202513  1

 202512 CDS/Physical 
  II-  -10  48  2


 3

 4

 5

 30  2023  21  2023  1389SRO  2023  27

 QR  2025

 

https://saritowspinningmillsltd.com/annualreports.aspx


 www.saritowspinningmillsltd.com 



 6

 72  2017 
 7

 2021  03  6  2021  15  4 
 AGM 


 AGM 

 https//zoom.us/download  48  AGM 


    / 




    

 
umer.islam@saigols.com 0321-8561366

 




CHAIRMANS' REVIEW REPORT 
 

I am pleased to present the Chairman's Review Report of the company for 
the year ending 30 June 2025, pertaining to the overall performance of the 

board and its role in achieving the company's objectives. 
 
During the year the Board committees continue to work with a great measure of 
proficiency The Audit Committee has focused in particular on the management and 
control of risks associated with the business. The Human Resource and Remuneration 

Committee has ensured that the HR Policies regarding performance management, HR 
staffing, compensation and benefits are market driven and are property aligned to the 
Company's performance, shareholder's interest and the long-term success of the 
company. 
 
As required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2019, the Board has developed a mechanism for the evaluation of performance of the 
Board of Directors, during the year a comprehensive questionnaire was circulated 
among all members of the board for the evaluation of performance of the Board of 
Directors. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overall 
performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in 
the context of objectives set for the Company. 
 
For the financial year ended June 30, 2025, the Board's overall performance and 
effectiveness has been assessed as satisfactory. Improvement is an on-going process 
leading to action plan. The overall assessment as satisfactory is based on an evaluation 
of integral component including vision, mission and values; engagement in strategic 
planning; formulation of polices; monitoring the organization's business activities; 
monitor financial resource management; effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment 
of all employees and efficiencies in carrying out the Board's business. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, received agendas and supporting written 
material including follow up materials in sufficient time prior to the board and its 
Committee meetings. The Board meets frequently enough to adequately discharge its 

responsibilities. The non-executive and Independent directors are equally involved in 
important decisions. 
 
On an overall basis, I believe the strategic direction of the Company is dear and 
appropriate. Further, the processes adopted in developing and reviewing the overall 
corporate strategy and achievement of the Company's objective are commendable. 
 
 
 
M. NASEEM SAIGOL 
CHAIRMAN 
August 29, 2025 



 

     2025  30



 




 2019 


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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The Directors of M/s. Saritow Spinning Mills Limited are please to present 
Financial Results for the year ended June 30, 2025 along with Auditors Report and 
Director Report thereupon. 

 
Financial Highlights 

Year Ending 
June 30, 2025 

 

Year Ending 
June 30, 2024 

 
Net Sales 19.229 2,222.878 
Gross (loss) (574.630) (127.568) 
Operating (loss) (594.542) (199.420) 
Loss before Tax and statutory levies (597.007) (280.914) 
Loss after tax and statutory levies (597.247) (308.699) 
Earnings per share (20.01) (10.34) 
 

Operating Financial Results 
The period under review was very tough and abnormal for your company. The 
operations of the Company remained suspended during the year under review. 
 
The period under review was not conducive for the industry as a whole. Overall 
business environment became very hard in the country which was further affected 
by the geo political scenario of the country in particular and the whole world in 
general. Consistently decreasing local Raw Cotton production which is the main 
raw material, increase in major input cost and depressed yarn market have eroded 
the profits of Ring Spinning Industry. 
 
Future Outlook 
At the moment we are trying to sort out some workable plan for the revival plan of 
the Company. During past few months markup rates have gone down and is 
expected to go down further.  
 
The management of the company will keep watching the future outlook of business 
in the country and will decide for future strategy after due deliberation. 
 
Cash Flow Management 
Board of Directors’ places great importance for an effective cash flow management 
so as to ensure smooth running of the business. For this purpose, cash inflows and 
outflows are projected on regular basis and verified periodically. Working capital 
requirements have been planned to be finance through internal cash generation 
and short-term financing from external sources. 
 
Internal Financial Controls 
 
The directors are aware of their financial responsibility with respect to internal 
financial   controls. Through discussion with management and auditors, they 
confirm that adequate controls have been implemented by the company. 
 
Statement of Compliance on Corporate Governance & Financial Reporting 
Framework 
 
In compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities   
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 the Directors are pleased to report that: 
 
i) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present   

fair state of Company's operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 
ii) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained as required 

under the Companies Act, 20 l 7.  



iii) Appropriate accounting  policies have been consistently  applied  in the  
preparation   of financial statements  and changes,  wherever made,  have  
been  adequately  disclosed.  Accounting estimates are based on reasonable 
and prudent judgment. 

iv) International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial 
Reporting   Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 
the preparation of financial statements, and any departure there from has been 
adequately disclosed and explained. 

v) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively   
implemented and monitored. 

vi) There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern due to continuous support of Sponsor Directors. 

vii) Key operating and financial data. For the last six years is annexed. 
viii) Outstanding taxes and levis are given in the notes to the financial statements. 
ix) No  adverse   material   changes   and  commitments    affecting  the  financial   

position   of  the Company  have occurred  between  the end of the financial  
year  to which  this balance  sheet relates and the date of the Director's  
Report. 

x) The  figures  in  the financial  statements   for the year  ending  June  30, 2025,  
have  been audited by external  auditors  of the Company. 

xi) The Company  has fulfilled  its major  statutory  and financial   obligations; 
 
Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance 
 
The requirements  of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the Pakistan  
Stock  Exchange in its Listing  Regulations relevant  for the year  ended  June  30,  
2025  have  been  adopted  by the Company  and have been duly complied  with. A 
statement to this effect is annexed to the Report. 
 
Dividends 
 
The Board of Directors recommended that no dividend shall be declared for the 
year ended 30th June, 2025 as the Company has incurred loss during the year. 
 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Your company gives high priority to its social responsibilities and is committed to 
the highest standards of corporate behavior. The company’s CSR responsibilities 
are fulfilled through monetary contributions in the areas of healthcare, education, 
environment protection, water and sanitation, child welfare, infrastructure 
development and other social welfare activities. Our CSR includes contributions to 
hospitals and education programs engaged in assisting the under privileged 
patients’ students and children of various walks of life. 
 
Board Evaluation 
 
In compliance with Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2019, the Board has 
put in place a mechanism for the annual evaluation of Board's performance. The   
evaluation of the performance of the Board is essentially an assessment of how the 
board has performed on all of the selected parameters. 
 
Health Safety and Environment 
Your company is well aware of the importance of skilled workers and staff therefore 
the company is strongly committed towards all aspects of safety, health and 
environment connected with our business. 
 
 



Pattern of Shareholding 
Statement showing the Pattern of Shareholding as at June 30, 2025 required under 
the Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of Corporate Governance are annexed. 
 
 
COMPOSITION OF BOARD 
Composition of the Board of Directors and meetings attended are as under. 
 

Names  Category 
Meeting 

attended 

Mr. Jamal Nasim 

Mrs. Sadaf Kashif  

Independent Director 

Female Director/ 

Independent Director 

5 

5 

Mr. M. Naseem Saigol 

Non-Executive 

Directors 

5 

Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol 5 

Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq 5 

Mr. Muhammad Zeid Yousuf Saigol 
Executive Directors 

5 

Mr. Samir Iqbal Saigol 5 

 
COMMITTEE’S 

Detail of Committee’s of Board is as under. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
Mr. Jamal Nasim    Chairman/Member 
Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol  Member 
Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq  Member 
Mrs. Sadaf Kashif    Member 
 
HR & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
Mr. Jamal Nasim    Chairman/Member 
Mr. Muhammad Zeid Yousuf Saigol Member 

Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol  Member 
Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq  Member 
 
We wish to thank to the shareholders for their support. We are pleased to record 
our appreciation of the services rendered by the employees of the company and 
hope that the same spirit of devotion will continue in future. 
 
 
 

        For and on behalf of the Boards 
 
 
              ___________________        ____________________ 
Lahore             Chief Executive        Director 
August 29, 2025                      




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Year Ending Year Ending

Financial High Lights June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Net Sales 19.229 3,600.124

Gross (loss) (574.630) (171.922)

Operating (loss) (594.542) (257.521)

Loss before tax and statutory levies (597.007) (400.369)

Loss after tax and statutory levies (597.247) (431.226)

Earnings per share (20.01) (14.92)























  6  

        1       



 

 

 





 







/   
 
 
 


/  
 
 
 
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


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SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - Six Years at a Glance

Particulars 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Operating Performance (Rupees in Thousands)

Turnover- Net 19                 2,222,878     3,600,124       4,860,004       3,653,463       2,812,843       

Gross Profit (575)              (127,568)       (171,922)        302,488          379,791          122,937          

Profit/(Loss) before tax (597)              (280,914)       (400,369)        147,336          231,719          (39,292)          

Profit/(Loss) after tax (597)              (308,700)       (431,227)        91,414            174,427          (58,204)          

Financial Position (Rupees in Thousands)

Share Capital 298,406        298,406        298,406          298,406          298,406          298,406          

Shareholders,Equity 114               256,690        475,093          818,534          739,055          560,750          

Operating Fixed Assets 1,198            1,155,113     1,213,168       1,270,574       1,281,003       1,213,820       

Total Assets 1,236            1,318,213     1,978,663       2,535,558       2,175,934       2,424,172       

Bank Borrowings - 60,502          587,864          661,190          569,115          963,116          

Ratio Analysis

Profitabiliy

Gross Profit Marign-% age - (5.73)             (4.78)              6.22 10.40  4.37 

Profit/(Loss)after tax-% age - (13.88)           (11.98)            1.88 4.77 (2.07)   

Earning/(Loss)Per Share-Rupees (20.01)           (10.34)           (14.45)            3.06 5.85 (1.95)   

Activity

Sales to Operating Fixed Assets-Times - 1.92              2.97               3.83 2.85 2.32 

Liquidity

Current Ratio-Times 0.01              0.22              0.75               1.07 1.03 1.03 

Break up Value Per Share-Rupees 3.82              86.02            15.92              27.43              24.77              18.79              



FORM 20
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

(Section 227(2)(f))

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company   SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30-06-2025

     ------Shareholdings------

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

269         1                 100                   7,173                          

276         101             500                   81,694                        

195         501             1,000                149,606                      

190         1,001          5,000                483,034                      

59           5,001          10,000              463,284                      

16           10,001        15,000              197,054                      

9             15,001        20,000              162,020                      

6             20,001        25,000              141,627                      

2             25,001        30,000              56,215                        

3             30,001        35,000              93,606                        

1             45,001        50,000              50,000                        

2             50,001        55,000              105,000                      

1             55,001        60,000              60,000                        

3             60,001        65,000              187,937                      

1             65,001        70,000              67,000                        

2             75,001        80,000              158,555                      

1             110,001      115,000            110,500                      

1             130,001      135,000            130,136                      

1             135,001      140,000            140,000                      

1             145,001      150,000            150,000                      

1             195,001      200,000            200,000                      

1             220,001      225,000            223,800                      

1             1,305,001   1,310,000         1,309,435                   

1             2,175,001   2,180,000         2,179,462                   

1             2,295,001   2,300,000         2,300,000                   

1             2,440,001   2,445,000         2,442,113                   

1             2,495,001   2,500,000         2,497,500                   

1             2,500,001   2,505,000         2,502,500                   

1             5,050,001   5,055,000         5,053,206                   

1             8,135,001   8,140,000         8,138,150                   

1,049      29,840,607                 



Sr. No. Name
No. of 

Shares Held
Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): -                 -                 

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)

1 PRUDENTIAL STOCK FUND LTD (CDC) 5,000             0.0168

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Chidren (Name Wise Detail):  

1 MR. M. NASEEM SAIGOL (CDC) 8,138,150      27.2721

2 MR. MUHAMMAD OMER FAROOQ 2,881             0.0097

3 MR. SAMIR IQBAL SAIGOL 1,123             0.0038

4 MR. MUHAMMAD ZEID SAIGOL 2,503,123      8.3883

5 MR. MUHAMMAD MURAD SAIGOL (CDC) 2,497,500      8.3695

6 MRS. SADAF KASHIF 500                0.0017

7 MR. JAMAL NASIM (CDC) 500                0.0017

8 MRS. SEHYR SAIGOL W/O M. NASEEM SAIGOL (CDC) 2,179,462      7.3037

Executives: -                 -                 

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -                 -                 

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 169,333         0.5675

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 MR. M. NASEEM SAIGOL. (CDC) 8,138,150      27.2721

2 MRS. AMBER HAROON SAIGOL (CDC) 5,053,206      16.9340

3 MR. MUHAMMAD ZEID YOUSAF SAIGOL (CDC) 2,503,123      8.3883

4 MR. MUHAMMAD MURAD SAIGOL (CDC) 2,497,500      8.3695

5 MR. LIQUAT ALI (CDC) 2,442,113      8.1839

7 MR. KHAWAJA SAFEE SULTAN (CDC) 2,300,000      7.7076

6 MRS. SEHYR SAIGOL  (CDC) 2,179,462      7.3037

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their

spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

Sr. No. Name Sale Purchase

NIL

SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on June 30, 2025



Categories of Shareholders No. of Shareholders Share held Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse

and minor children 15,323,239 51.3503     

Associated Companies, undertakings and related party - - -

NIT and ICP 1,349,991 4.5240       

Banks Development Financial Institutions Non Banking

Financial Institution 30,337 0.1017       

Insurance Companies 6,614 0.0222       

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 7,246 0.0243       

General Public 12,890,268 43.1971     

Others (to be specified)

Pension Funds 130,136 0.4361       

Other Companies 4,566 0.0153       

Joint Stock Companies 80,403 0.2694       

Foreign Companies 17,807 0.0597       

29,840,607 100.0000   
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   

   

  

   

   

  

  

  

  

 







 

 
 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

100.0000      29,840,607 1,049 


-   




5,000 
15,323,239 

- 
- 

169,333 
25,133,554 

 


        





STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES 

(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 

 

Name of company:  SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

Year ending:  JUNE 30, 2025 

 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: - 

 

1. The total number of directors are Seven as per the following, - 

 

a) Male:      Six 

b) Female:      One 

 

2. The composition of the Board is as follows: 

 

Names  Category 

Mr. Jamal Nasim 

 

Mrs. Sadaf Kashif  

Independent Director 

 

Female Director/ Independent Director 

Mr. M. Naseem Saigol 

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol 

Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq 

Mr. Muhammad Zeid Yousuf Saigol 
Executive Directors 

Mr. Samir Iqbal Saigol  

 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 

including this company; 

 

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 

disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures; 

 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 

company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their 

date of approval or updating is maintained by the company; 

 

6.  All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by 

the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;  

 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 

Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect 

to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board; 

 

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with 

the Act and these Regulations; 

 

9. In terms of the requirement of the clause 19 of the CCG Regulations, we confirm that Six directors have 

completed the Directors Training Program (DTP) and one director is exempt from the DTP; 

 

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal audit, 

including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements 

of the Regulations; 

 

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of 

the Board; 

 



12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.- 
 

a) Audit Committee: 
 

1. Mr. Jamal Nasim 

2. Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol 

3. Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq 

4. Mrs. Sadaf Kashif 
 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 
 

1. Mr. Jamal Nasim 

2. Mr. Muhammad Zeid Yousuf Saigol 

3. Mr. Muhammad Murad Saigol 

4. Mr. Muhammad Omer Farooq 
 

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 

committee for compliance; 
 

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following,- 
 

a) Audit Committee: 
 

1. October 30, 2024  (1st Quarter) 

2. November 06, 2024 (Annual) 

3. February 28, 2025 (2nd Quarter) 

4. April 28, 2025 (3rd Quarter) 

 
 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 
 

1. November 06, 2024 
 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal audit function to who 

are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and 

procedures of the company; 
 

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 

Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with 

Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International 

Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative 

(spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, 

head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company; 
 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 

except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 

confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; 
 

18. We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been 

complied with.  

 

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are 

appended below. 

 

 

 

 

 

   ___________________________ 

                                              Chief Executive              Director 

  



EXPLANATION FOR NON-COMPLIANCE OF NON-MANDATORY  

Requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, 2019 (“CCG”) 
 

Sr.# Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation 

Number 

1 Disclosure of significant policies on 

website 

The company may post key elements 

of its significant policies, brief 

synopsis of reference of the Board 

Committees on its website and key 

elements of the directors’ 

remuneration policy 

The requirement to disclose significant 

policies on the website is non-

mandatory in regulation No. 35(1), and 

thus the Company has uploaded limited 

information in this respect on its 

website. The Company is, however, 

considering placing key elements and 

synopsis of other policies on its 

website. 

 

35 

2 The Board constitute the  anti-

harassment policy to safeguard the 

rights and well-being of employees 

 

Currently, the Board has not constituted 

an anti-harassment policy and the 

functions are being performed by the 

Human Resource department according 

to the company’s Grievance Policy. 

 

10 

3 As per CCG 2019 "10A.- Role of the 

Board and its members to address 

Sustainability Risks and Opportunities 

The board will take appropriate 

measures to proactively understand and 

address the principal as well as 

emerging sustainability risks and 

opportunities relevant to the company 

and its business, including climate-

related risks and opportunities,  assess 

their  potential financial and operational 

impacts and  implement strategies for 

management and mitigation thereof 

 

10 

4 Nomination Committee: 
 

The Board may constitute a separate 

committee, designated as the 

nomination committee, of such 

number and class of directors, as it 

may deem appropriate in its 

circumstances. 

Currently, the board has not constituted 

a separate Nomination Committee and 

the functions are being performed by 

the Human Resource & Remuneration 

Committee. 

29(I) 

5 Risk Management Committee: 

 

The Board may constitute the risk 

management committee, of such 

number and class of directors, as it 

may deem appropriate in its 

circumstances, to carry out a review of 

effectiveness of risk management 

procedures and present a report to the 

Board. 

The Board has not constituted a 

separate risk management committee 

however the risk is managed at 

respective department level which is 

also supervised by the departmental 

head. 

30(I) 

 

  









SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2025 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

Authorized share capital 6 

Rupees 

350,000,000 

Rupees 
[restated] 

350,000,000 

Issued ordinary share capital 7 298,406,070 298,406,070 
Loans from directors and sponsors 8 102,000,000 
Revaluation reserve 9 622,471,778 65,433,957 
Accumulated losses (807,934,937) (209,149499) 

TOTAL EQUITY 112,942,911 256,690,528 

LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Loans from directors and sponsors 10 265,884,966 
Long term borrowings 11 12,324,275 
Long term deposits 12 - 6,010,000 
Employees retirement benefits 13 19,273,009 20,529,847 
Deferred grant 14 - 74,172 

19,273,009 304,823,260 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 15 285,535,300 276,393,139 
Unclaimed dividend 485,351 485,351 
Short term borrowings 16 817,586,019 469,054,112 
Accrued interest on borrowings 17 - 11,350,217 

Current maturity of non-current liabilities 18 28,182,352 

1,103,606,670 785,465,171 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,122,879,679 1,090,288,431 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 19 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,235,822,590 1,346,978,959 

The annexed notes from I to 54 form an integral part of these finanical statements 

       

       

       

       

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 

DI TOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
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SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2025 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, plant and equipment 
Long term deposits 

20 
21 

Rupees 

1,198,120,499 
13,756,860 

Rupees 

1,155,113,202 
19,236,860 

1,211,877,359 1,174,350,062 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Stores, spares and loose tools 22 10,478,617 21,789,571 
Trade receivables 23 6,392,105 
Short term advances 24 3,049,000 3,855,303 
Short term deposits and prepayments 25 3,275,544 105,740,936 
Sales tax refundable/adjustable 1,206,970 6,084,849 
Cash and bank balances 26 5,935,100 28,766,133 

23,945,231 172,628,897 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,235,822,590 1,346,978,959 

The annexed notes from I to 54 form an integral part of these finanical statements 

rALJ 
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SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

Cost of sales 

27 

28 

Rupees 

19,229,124 

(594,737,064) 

Rupees 

2,222,877,783 

(2,350,445,757) 

Gross loss (575,507,940) (127,567,974) 

Other income 29 9603,287 559,343 

Selling and distribution expenses 30 (949,256) (13,265,503) 
Administrative expenses 31 (25,232,750) (60,290,685) 
Other expenses 32 (2,620,433) (3,568,439) 

(28,802,439) (77,124,627) 

Impairment (allowance)/reversal for expected credit losses 43.1.6 (793,017) 1,144,450 

Operating loss (595,500,109) (202,988,808) 

Finance cost 33 (2,464,463) (77,925,151) 

Loss before statutory levies and income taxes (597,964,572) (280,913,959) 

Provision for statutory levies 34 (240,364) (27,785,973) 

Loss before income taxes (598,204,936) (308,699,932) 

Provision for income taxes 35 

Loss after income taxes (598,204,936) (308,699,932) 

Basic loss per share (Rupees] 36 (20.05) (10.34) 

The annexed notes from I to 54 form an integral part of these finanloal statements 

44/  
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SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Profit after income taxes 

Other comprehensive income: 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

Revaluation surplus 
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation 
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 

9 
13.40 

Rupees '000 

(598,204,936) 

558,213,316 
(1,755,997) 

Rupees '000 

(308,699,932) 

- 
1,473,384 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 

556,457,319 1,473,384 

Other comprehensive (loss)/income after income taxes 556,457,319 1,473,384 

Total comprehensive income (41,747,617) (307,226,548) 

The annexed notes from I to 54 form an integral part of these finanical statements 

CHIEF EXEC IVEOFFICER DIRECTOR C18EF FINANCIAL OFFICER 



(1,175,495) (102,000,000) 1,175,495 (102,000,000) 

298,406,070 As at 30 June 2025 622,471,778 (807,934,937) 112,942,911 

The annexed nfitp, fom I to 54 form an integral part of these finanical statements 
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SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

As at 01 July 2023 [originally reported] 

Correction of prior period error 

As at 01 July 2023 (restated] 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Profit after income taxes 

Other comprehensive income after income taxes 

Other transactions 

Incremental depreciation [restated] 

As at 30 June 2024 [restated] 

As at 01 July 2024 (restated] 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Profit after income taxes 

Other comprehensive loss after income taxes 

Other transactions 

Note 

Issued 

ordinary 

share capital 

Loans 

from directors 

and sponsors 

Revaluation 

reserve 

Accumulated 

losses 

Total 

equity 

298,406,070 102000,000 83795,232 79.715.774 563,917,076 

53 (17,123911) 17,123,911 

298,406,070 102,000,000 66,671,321 96,839,685 563,917,076 

(308,699,932) (308,699,932) 

1,473,384 1,473384 

(307,226,548) (307,226,548) 

9 (1,237,364) 1,237,364 

298,406,070 102,000.000 65.433,957 (209,149,499) 256,690,528 

298,406,070 102,000,000 65,433,957 (209,149,499) 256,690,528 

(598,204,936) (598,204,936) 

558,213,316 (1,755,997) 556,457,319 

558,213,316 (599,960,933) (41,747,617) 

9 - - - (1,175,495) 1,175,495 - 

- (102,000,000) - - (102,000,000) 

Incremental depreciation 

Loans from directors and sponsors 

Transferred to short temi borrowings 



SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash generated from operations 

Payments for: 
Interest on borrowings 

Income taxes and levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
Employees retirement benefits 

38 

Rupees 

56,451,788 

(4,289,565) 
(9,604,409) 

(5,454,989) 

Rupees 

272,212,572 

(98,397,155) 
(26,131,359) 
(81,711,134) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 37,102,825 65,972,924 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,706,868) 

Net cash used in investing activities (4,706868) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Repayment of long term borrowings (40,580,799) (25,476,313) 
Net decrease in short term borrowings (19,353,059) (53,563,460) 

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (59,933,858) (79,039,773) 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,831,033) (17,773,717) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 28,766,133 46,539,850 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 37 5,935,100 28.766,133 

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these finanical statements 
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Following is the gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30-06-2025

Median Gender Pay Gap:    241   -  0 *100     = 100

241

Houly rate Male Employees         241

Houly rate Female Employees     Nill

Mean Gender Pay Gap: 203   -  0 *100     = 100

203

Houly rate Male Employees          203

Houly rate Female Employees      Nill

Any other data / detail as deemed relevant:   Nill

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 10 OF 2024

SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LTD

Gender Pay Gap Statement under circular 10 of 2024



SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 

Saritow Spinning Mills Limited [the Company] was incorporated under the repealed Companies Ordinance,1984 on 10 March 
1987. The Company is a Public Company Limited by Shares and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal 
activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. 

1.1 Location of business units 

Registered office 10-G, Mushtaq Ahmed Gurmani Road, Gulberg - It, Lahore, Pakistan 
Manufacturing Unit 51 KM, Multan Road, Phool Nagar, Kasur, Pakistan 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan. 
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards ['IFRS'J issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as notified under 
the Companies Act, 2017; 

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the 
Companies Act, 2017; and 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and IFAS Standards, the provisions 
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. 

2.2 Appropriateness of the going concern assumption 

The Company has been facing a declining trend in revenue and profitability resulting in substantial losses. During the year ended 
30 June 2025, the Company has incurred gross loss of Rs. 575.51 million and loss after income taxes amounting to Rs. 598.21 
million. As at 30 June 2025, the Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 807.94 million and its current liabilities exceed its current 
assets by Rs.1,079.66 million as at that date. Depressed yarn prices, increased production cost and underutilization of production 
capacity contributed to the Company's challenging liquidity situation due to which the Company has mostly relied on the financial 
support of its directors and sponsors. The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 28 February 2024 resolved to 
close the production facility for the time being. These factors indicate existence of material uncertainty that raises doubts about the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, that it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its 
liabilities in the normal course of business. Nowever, these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis based 
on the following: 

(a) The Company has continued financial support of its directors and sponsors in the form of interest free loans. During the 
reporting period, directors and sponsors have provided financial support amounting to Rs. 816.99 million in the form of interest 
free loans. 

(b) Despite accumulated losses the Company has positive equity. 

(c) The Company has curtailed its production in order to minimize fixed costs which will reduce the financial burden on the 
Company providing immediate relief. 

(d) The Company has remained current in its debt servicing. 

The management believes that in view of the afore mentioned, the Company will able to continue as a going concern. 

2.3 Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured on 
an alternative basis as at the reporting date. 

Items Measurement basis 

Financial liabilities Amortized cost 
Employees retirement benefits Present value 
Land, building, plant and machinery Revalued amounts 
Financial assets Amortized cost 

RS1?I'R 



SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

2.4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and 
associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Subsequently, actual results may differ from these estimates, Estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

2.4.1 Critical accounting judgements 

Critical accounting judgements made by the management in the application of accounting and reporting standards that have 
significant effect on the financial statements are as follows: 

(a) Business model assessment (see note 5.1.2) 

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets 
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The Company determines the business model at a level that 
reflects how financial assets are managed to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement 
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the 
risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed. The Company monitors financial assets measured 
at amortized cost or fair value that are derecognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and 
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the 
Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues 
to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change 
to the classification of those assets. No such changes were required during the year. 

(b) Significant increase in credit risk (see note 5.15.1) 

Expected credit losses ['ECL'l are measured, based on the Company's risk grading framework, at an allowance equal to 12-
month/lifetime ECL for 'performing' assets, or lifetime ECL for assets categorized as 'doubtful' or 'in default'. An asset is 
categorized as 'doubtful' when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what 
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the 
Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. 

2.4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that may have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are 
as follbws: 1 

(a) Calculation of impairment allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (see note 43.1.3) 

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of 
initial recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk 
since initial recognition of the respective financial asset. Estimating expected credit losses and changes there in requires taking 
into account qualitative and quantitative forward looking information. When measuring expected credit losses on financial 
assets the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information as well as historical data to calculate the 
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to receive, taking into account 
cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements, if any. Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring 
expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation 
of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. If the ECL rates on financial assets carried 
at amortized cost were higher (lower) by 10%, the loss allowance on those assets would have been higher (lower) by Rs. 2.53 
million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 14.72 million). 

(b) Present value of defined benefit obligation (see note 13) 

The determination of the Oompany's defined benefiLobligation depends on certain assumptions, which irclude selection of the 
discount rate, average rate of increase in salaries and mortality rates. The discount rate is set by reference to market yields at 
the end of the reporting period on government bonds as there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in Pakistan. 
Average rate of increase in salary are based on market expectations, inflation and historical trends. Mortality rates are based 
upon SLIC(2001-05) mortality table. These assumptions are considered to be a key source of estimation uncertainty as 
relatively small changes in the assumptions used may have a significant effect on the Company's financial statements within 
the next year. 

Present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined using projected unit credit method. The liability as at the 
reporting date has been determined by an independent actuary, Nauman Associates, Consulting Actuaries. The principal 
assumptions used in determining present value of defined benefit obligation are: 

i5isL'k. 
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30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Discount rate 11.75% 14.75% 
Expected rates of increase in salary 10.75% 13.75% 

An analysis of sensitivity for discount rate and expected rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of 
defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by 
changes in relevant actuarial assumption that were reasonably possible at that date is as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Change Defined Change Defined 

in actuarial benefit in actuarial benefit 
assumption obligation assumption obligation 

Rupees Rupees 

Discount rate +1% 18,689,060 +1% 19,791,363 
- 1% 19,909,901 - 1% 21,339,625 

Expected rate of increase in salary +1% 19,921,496 +1% 21,357,809 
-1% 18,668,085 -1% 19,761,924 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is 
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date 
has been calculated using projected unit credit method, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit 
obligation to be recognized in these financial statements. 

(c) Revaluation of land and building (see note 45.2.1) 

Most recent revaluation of land and building was carried out by an independent valuer, Joseph Lobo (Private) Limited, on 30 
June 2025. Revalued amounts of land and building have been determined by reference to local market values taking into 
account prevailing fair market prices under the position and circumstances present on the date of valuation and current market 
scenario for properties of similar nature in the immediate neighborhood and adjoining areas. Land is valued using market 
comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties. Significant inputs include estimated purchase 
price, including non-refundable purchase taxes and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Building is valued using 
cost approach that reflects the cost to the market participants to construct assets of comparable utility and age, adjusted for 
obsolescence and depreciation. Significant inputs include estimated construction costs and other ancillary expenditure. 

A 5% increase in estimated purchase price of land, including non-refundable purchase taxes and other costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of land or in estimated construction cost of buildings and other ancillary expenditure would result 
in a significant increase in fair value of land and building by Rs. 18.05 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 5.07 million) and Rs. 20.75 million 
(30-Jun-24: Rs. 6.12 million) respectively. 

(d) Revaluation of plant and machinery (see note 45.2.1) 

Most recent revaluation of plant and machinery was carried out by an independent valuer, Joseph Lobo (Private) Limited, on 30 
June 2025. Revalued amounts of plant and machinery are determined by using cost approach that reflects the cost to the 
market participants to construct or acquire machinery of comparable utility and age, adjusted for obsolescence and 
depreciation. Significant inputs include estimated construction/acquisition costs and other ancillary expenditure. 

A 5% increase in estimated construction/aquisition cost of machinery and other ancillary expenditure would result in a 
significant increase in fair value of plant and machinery by Rs. 20.60 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 45.86 million). 

(e) Deferred tax on temporary differences in non-tax/levy regime (see note 5.16.2) 

Deferred tax is recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. The Company is subject to non-tax/levy regime whereby taxes 
under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 are levied on turnover or other basis and are not based on taxable profits. Significant 
management judgement is required to determine whether the Company is expected to be assessed in non-tax/levy regime for 
the foreseeable future, and the amount of deferred tax that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of 
future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies. 

The Company has unused tax losses amounting to Rs. 859.79 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 759.66 million) and tax credits amounting 
to Rs. 73.03 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 72.79 million) as at the reporting date. However, the Company has not recognised deferred 
tax as the Company is subject to and expects to remain in non-tax/levy regime for the forseeable future. 
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Valid till Nature 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Tax Year Rupees Rupees 

2029 Tax losses 410,607,490 410,607,490 
2030 Tax losses 349,053,888 349,053,888 
2031 Tax losses 100,132,461 

859,793,839 759,661,378 

2026 Tax credits 45,001,548 45,001,548 
2027 Tax credits 27,785,972 27,785,972 
2028 Tax credits 240,364 - 

73,027,884 72,787,520 

Unused tax losses include depreciation losses amounting to Rs. 117.91 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 94.18 million) available for 
utilization against future taxable profits indefinitely. 

(17 Provisions for levies and in come faxes under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (see note 34 and 35) 

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal forums 
while estimating its provisions for income taxes, levies and tax contingencies under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ['the 
Ordinance']. 

The provision for levies and current tax under the Ordinance are estimated at Rs. 0.24 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 27.79 million) and 
Rs. nil (30-Jun-24: Rs. nil) respectively. The management believes that the provision for levies and current tax made in the 
financial statements is sufficient to discharge related liabilities under the Ordinance. 

2.5 Presentation currency 

These financial statements have been presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional currency. The amounts 
reported in these financial statements have been rounded to the nearest Rupee unless specified otherwise. 

2.6 Date of authorization for issue 

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue on 29 August 
2025. 

3 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR. 

The following new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS] and international Accounting Standards [lAS], 
interpretations of and amendments to IFRS and lAS are effective in the current period but are either not relevant to the Company or 
their application does not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company other than presentation and 
disclosures, except as stated otherwise. 

3.1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to lAS 1) 

The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the 
statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due or 
potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current. 

3.2 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to lFRS 16) 

The amendment clarifies how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements 
in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale. 

3.3 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to lAS 1) 

The amendment clarifies how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period affect the 
classification of a liability. 

3.4 Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to lAS 7 and IFRS 7) 

The amendments add disclosure requirements, and 'signposts' within existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities to provide 
qualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangements. 
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4 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE. 

The following standards, interpretations and amendments are in issue which are not effective as at the reporting date and have not 
been early adopted by the Company. 

Effective date 
(annual periods beginning 

on or after) 

Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to lAS 21) 01 January 2025 

Amendments IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 regarding the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments 

Amendments IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 regarding the power purchase agreements 

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume ii 

IFRS Si General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information 

IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures 

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts  

01 January 2026 

01 January 2026 

01 January2026 

01 July 2026 

01 July 2026 

01 January2027 

Other than aforementioned standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have 
not been notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for adoption. 

- IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 

- IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements 

- IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 
The Company intends to adopt these new standards on their effective dates, subject to notification by Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan under section 225 of the Companies Act, 2017 regarding their adoption. The management anticipates that 
the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations in future periods, will not have a material impact on the 
Company's interim financial statements other than in presentation/disclosures. 

5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. 

5.1 Financial instruments 

5.1.1 Recognition 

A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

5.1.2 Classification 

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and 
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the substance 
of contractual provisions. The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition as follows: 

(a) Financial assets at amortized cost 

These are financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cashflows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income ('fair value through 0C17 

These are: 

(i) financial assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and 
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and 

(ii) investments in equity instruments, that are not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by the Company as 
acquirer in a business combination, for which the Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to present 
changes in fair value on subsequent measurement in other comprehensive income. 
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(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

These are financial assets which have not been classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost' or as 'financial assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive income', are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss or for which the 
Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial asset at fair value through profit or loss' if 
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. 

(d) Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

These are financial liabilities which are not derivates, financial guarantee contracts, commitments to provide loans at below-
market interest rate, contingent consideration payable to an acquirer in a business combination or financial liabilities that arise 
when transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition. 

(e) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

These are financial liabilities which have not been classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost' or for which the Company 
makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss' if doing 
so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency. 

5.1.3 Measurement 

Measurement methods adopted are explained in individual policy statements associated with each financial instrument. 

5.1.4 De-recognition 

A financial asset is derecognized when the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or when 
the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards of the 
financial asset. A financial liability is derecognized when the Company's obligations specified in the contract expire or a discharged 
or cancelled. 

5.1.5 Off-setting 

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if the Company 
has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

5.1.6 Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets 

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the market place. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and 
derecognized on a trade date basis. 

5,2 Ordinary share capital 

Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized 
as deduction from equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are charged directly against equity as a deduction from retained earnings, 
when approved by the ordinary shareholders of the Company. 

5.3 Loans and borrowings 

Loans and borrowings are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost, 
being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are 
measured at amortized cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in the profit or loss over the period 
of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. Transaction costs included in the carrying amount of the loans are amortized over 
the lives of loans using the effective interest method. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until 
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 

1S1u1 
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5.4 Leases as 'lesse& 

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if 
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identifiable asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the 
lessee, except for the short-term leases and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognizes the lease 
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 

A right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is recognized using straight-line method over the shorter of lease term and useful life of the 
right-of-use asset, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of lease term or the 
cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case, the right-of-use asset is 
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment 
assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is adjusted for certain remeasurements of the related lease liability. 

Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate. Lease payments included in measurement of lease liability comprise: 

- Fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable; 

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date: 

- The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees: 

- The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options: and 

Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease liability is measured at amortized cost using effective interest method whereby the carrying 
amount of lease liability is increased to reflect the interest thereon and decreased to reflect lease payments made. Interest is 
recognized in profit or loss. 

Lease liability is remeasured whenever: 

The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the assessment 
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments 
using a revised discount rate: 

The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual 
value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount 
rate, unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is 
used; or 

- A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability 
is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised 
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. 

When the lease liability is remeasured a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the related right-of-use 
asset, except where the carrying amount of right-of-use asset is reduced to zero. In that case, any adjustment exceeding the 
carrying amount of the right-of use asset is recognized in profit or loss. 

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and the right-of-use 
asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those 
payments occurs. 

5.5 Short-term leases 

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term 
of twelve months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term 
leases are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

T'Si?Ii. 
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5.6 Government and other grants 

Grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognizes as expenses the 
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, grants whose primary condition is that the Company 
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets (including property, plant and equipment) are recognized as 
deferred income in the statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the 
useful lives of the related assets. 

Grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial 
support to the Company with no future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable. 

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the difference 
between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates. The amount of grant is 
recognized as deferred income in the statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational 
basis over the tenure of loan. 

5.7 Trade and other payables 

5.7.1 Financial liabilities 

These are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair 
value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss. 

5.7.2 Non-financial liabilities 

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

5.8 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable 
that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision 
is measured using cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash 
flows. Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, or where a reliable estimate of the amount of 
obligation cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote. 

5.9 Property, plant and equipment 

Land, buildings and plant and machinery held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative 
purposes, are stated in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, 
less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, except for freehold land, which is not depreciated. 
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would 
be determined using fair values at the reporting date. 

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is credited to the revaluation 
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized as an expense in 
profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease 
in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is recognized as an expense in profit 
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that 
asset. 

All other items or property, plant and equipment (services and other equipment, office equipment, furniture and fixtures, arms and 
ammunitions and vehicles) are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are 
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes the cost of material, labor and appropriate overheads directly 
relating to the construction, erection and installation of the asset and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in 
accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, determined on the same basis as other assets of 
the same class, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. 

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 20, so as to write off the cost or revalued amounts of 
assets (other than freehold land and assets under construction) over their estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance 
method, with the exception of right-of-use assets, for which the lease does not transfer ownership of the underlying asset to the 
Company at the end of lease term, which are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and useful lives of the underlying assets, 
using straight line method. 
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Depreciation on an item of property, plant and equipment commences from the month in which the item is ready for intended use. 
Depreciation is discontinued from the month in which it is disposed or classified as held for disposal. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the 
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Incremental depreciation being the difference between depreciation based on the revalued amounts recognized in profit or loss and 
depreciation based on the historical cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings. On the 
subsequent disposal or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluation reserve is 
transferred directly to retained earnings. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise 
from its continued use. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of such items is determined as the difference between 
the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. 

5.10 Inventories 

5.10.1 Stores, spares and loose tools 

Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of moving 
average except for items in transit, which are valued at invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date. For items 
which are considered obsolete, the carrying amount is written down to nil. Spare parts held for capitalization are classified as non-
current assets. Net  realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale. 

5.10.2 Stock in trade 

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, with the exception of stock of waste which is valued at net realizable 
value. Cost is determined using the following basis: 

Category Basis of determination of cost 
Raw materials Moving average cost 
Work in process Average manufacturing cost 
Finished goods Average manufacturing cost 
Stock in transit Invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date 

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material, labor and an appropriate 
proportion of manufacturing overheads. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

5.11 Trade and other receivables 

5.11.1 Financial assets 

These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair value 
at the date of transaction, plus attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized 
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Amortized cost is measured using the effective interest method, with interest recognized 
in profit or loss. 

5.11.2 Non-financial assets 

These, on initial recognition, are measured at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortization. 

5,12 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash in hand and cash at bank. For the purpose of 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances. 
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5.13 Contracts with customers 

5.13.1 Revenue 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognizes revenue from 
a contract with customer when the Company satisfies an obligation specified in that contract. The following table provides 
information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers, including 
significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies. 

Product/service 

Yarn and waste 

Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance 
obligations, including significant payment terms 

Performance obligations are satisfied when customers 
obtain control of goods which is when these have 
been delivered to and have been accepted at their 
premises. Invoices are generated at that point in time 
and are usually payable within a period ranging from 
30 days to 120 days. There are no customer loyalty 
programs or warranty provisions. However, some 
contracts allow for return of goods if those do not 
meet the requirements or specifications provided in 
the contract. 

Revenue recognition policies  

Revenue is recognized at a point in 
time when the goods are delivered 
and have been accepted by 
customers at their premises. 

5.13.2 Contract assets 

Contract assets represents consideration receivable for work performed up to the reporting date where performance obligations 
have been satisfied but invoices have not been issued to customers. These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost'. 
On initial recognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair value at the date of transaction, plus attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost less accumulated impairment losses. Amortized 
cost is measured using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss. A contract asset is reclassified to a 
trade receivable once the Company has an unconditional right to payment i.e. when the invoice is issued. 

5.13.3 Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration 
from the customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is made or the payment is due if a customer 
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer. 

5.14 Employee benefits 

5.14.1 Short-term employee benefits 

The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services rendered 
by employees as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as an expense in profit or loss unless it is included in the cost 
of services or property and equipment as permitted or required by the approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. If the amount paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent 
that the prepayment would lead to a reduction in future payments or cash refund. 

The liability for compensated absences is measured at the amount that the Company expects to pay out in cash for unused leaves 
as at the reporting date. 

5.14.2 Post-employment benefits 

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its employees who have completed the minimum 
qualifying service period. Liability is adjusted on each reporting date to cover the obligation and the adjustment is charged to profit 
or loss with the exception of remeasurements which are recognized in statement of comprehensive income. The amount 
recognized on statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit obligation which is measured at 
present value using projected credit unit method. 

5.15 Impairment 

5.15.1 Financial assets 

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of initial 
recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk since initial 
recognition of the respective financial asset. 
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Impairment is recognized at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for financial assets for which credit risk has 
increased significantly since initial recognition. For financial assets for which credit risk is low, impairment is recognized at an 
amount equal to twelve months expected credit losses, with the exception of trade debts, for which the Company recognizes 
lifetime expected credit losses estimated using internal credit risk grading based on the Company's historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to debtors, general economic conditions, and an assessment for both the current 
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. 

All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the financial 
asset's carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial condition 
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made post write-off are recognized in profit or loss. 

5.15.2 Non-financial assets 

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount 
of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are 
allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro-rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods 
are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is 
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used in determining the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed 
only to that extent that the asset's carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

5.16 Income tax 

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive 
income. 

5.1 6.1 Current taxation 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of 
previous years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax credits, 
rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized 
as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset. 

5.16.2 Deferred taxation 

Deferred tax is accounted for by providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be 
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for 
deductible temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can 
be utilized. 

5.17 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting basic earnings per share by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares into ordinary shares. 
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5,18 Comprehensive income 

Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from 
transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income ['OCI']. OCI comprises items of income and expense, including reclassification 
adjustments, that are not recognized in profit or loss as required or permitted by accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan. 

5.19 Foreign currency transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Company using exchange rate prevailing at the 
date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at 
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are 
measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date the fair value is determined. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at historical cost are translated to functional 
currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date of initial recognition. Any gain or loss arising on translation of foreign currency 
transactions and balances is recognized in profit or loss. 

5.20 Fair value measurements 

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has 
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. A number of the Company's accounting policies 
and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. 

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e. the fair value 
of the consideration given or received, If the Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the 
transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor 
based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement, 
then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial 
recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the 
life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is 
closed out. 

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that 
instrument. A market is regarded as 'active' if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume 
to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation 
techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation 
technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. 

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company measures assets and long 
positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price. 

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
follows. 

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair 
value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the 
change has occurred. 

5.21 Segment reporting 

Segment reporting is based on the operating segments that are reported in the manner consistent with internal reporting of the 
Company. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other 
components. An operating segment's operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer to make decisions 
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is 
available. 

iS'RIi 
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6 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Shares Shares Rupees Rupees 

35,000,000 35,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 350,000,000 350,000,000 

35,000,000 35,000,000 350,000,000 350,000,000 

7 ISSUED ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Shares Shares Rupees Rupees 

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
13,275,000 13,275,000 Issued for cash 132,750,000 132,750,000 

16,565,607 16,565,607 Issued as consideration on merger 165,656,070 165,656,070 

29,840,607 29,840,607 298,406,070 298,406,070 

8 LOANS FROM DIRECTORS AND SPONSORS 

This represents loan obtained from a director and is unsecured, interest free and payable at the discretion of the Company. The 
loan is presented as equity as per "Technical Release 32 - Accounting for Directors' Loan" issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan. Movement during the year is as follows: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

As at beginning of the year 102,000,000 102,000,000 
Transferred to short term borrowings 16 (102,000,000) 

As at end of the year 102,000,000 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 
(restated) 

9 REVALUATION RESERVE 

As at beginning of the year 65,433,957 66,671,321 
Surplus recognized during the year 558,213,316 - 
Incremental depreciation transferred to retained earnings (1,175,495) (1,237,364) 

As at end of the year 622,471,778 65,433,957 

10 LOANS FROM DIRECTORS AND SPONSORS 

This represents unsecured loan obtained from directors and sponsors of the Company. 

These loans carried interest at one year KIBOR plus 2.5% (30-Jun-24: one year KIBOR plus 2.5%) per annum, payable on 
maturity. The terms of these loans provided for the lenders to waive, at their sole discretion, the payment of interest on these loans. 
During the year, interest amounting to Rs. 57.7 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 68.52 million) was waived by the lenders at their sole 
discretion. 

The loan was subordinate to long term borriwings (see note 11) and short term borrowings (see note 16) of the Company. 
Following the repayment of underlying borrowings, the subordination agreement stands lapsed and therefore the outstanding 
balances of these loans have been transferred to short term borrowings payable on demand. See note 8. 
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Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

LONG TERM BORROWINGS 

Rupees Rupees 

MCB Bank Limited I Term Facility 11.1 9,471,304 

MCB Bank Limited I Temporary Economic Refinance Facility 11.2 4,936,413 

MCB Bank Limited I Temporary Economic Refinance Facility 11.3 25,362,067 

39,769,784 

Current maturity presented under current liabilities 18 (27,445,509) 

12,324,275 

This represents term facility of Rs. 303 million sanctioned by MCB Bank Limited to finance capital expenditure. The facility was 
secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company, subordination of loan from directors and sponsors, and personal 
guarantees of the Company's directors, The facility carried interest at three months KIBOR plus 2.5% per annum, payable 
quarterly. The facility has been fully settled during the year. 

11.2 This represents temporary economic refinance facility of Rs. 16.262 million sanctioned by MCB Bank Limited to finance capital 
expenditure. The facility was secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company, subordination of loan from directors 
and sponsors, and personal guarantees of the Company's directors. The facility carried interest at a below-market rate of 3.75% 
per annum, payable quarterly. The facility has been fully settled during the year. 

The amortized cost of the facility was determined using a discount rate of 11.14% being the prevailing market rate of interest for 
similar instruments at the date of disbursement. The difference between the amortised cost and face value was recognized as 
deferred grant (see note 14). The details are as follows: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Face value of facility 5,081,875 
Unamortized deferred grant 14.1 (145,462) 

4,936,413 

11.3 This represents temporary economic refinance facility of Rs. 69.407 million sanctioned by MCB Bank Limited to finance capital 
expenditure. The facility was secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company, subordination of loan from directors 
and sponsors, and personal guarantees of the Company's directors. The facility carried interest at a below-market rate of 3.75% 
per annum, payable quarterly. The facility has been fully settled during the year. 

The amortized cost of the facility was determined using a discount rate of 11.18% being the prevailing market rate of interest for 
similar instruments at the date of disbursement. The difference between the amortised cost and face value was recognized as 
deferred grant (see note 14). The details are as follows: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Face value of facility 26,027,620 
Unamortized deferred grant 14.1 (665,553) 

25,362,067 

11.4 For mortgages and charges on assets as security for liabilities, refer to note 46 to the financial statements. 

12 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

These represent interest free security deposits from yarn dealers and are repayable on cancellation or withdrawal of dealership. 
These were being utilized by the Company in accordance with the terms of dealership agreements. These are classified as 
'financial liabilities at amortized cost' under IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' which are required to be carried at amortized cost. 
However, since the date of repayment cannot be reasonably ascertained, these deposits were carried at cost as their amortized 
cost was impracticable to determine. Following the cessation of production operations, the Company can no longer fulfill the terms 
of the dealership agreements, resulting in these deposits becoming repayable on demand. Consequently, these have been 
reclassified as current liabilities (see note 15). 

i5 r-; 
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13 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for all its employees who have completed the 
minimum qualifying service period. Under the scheme, the Company pays a lump-sum benefit equal to last drawn monthly gross 
salary for each year of service to scheme members whereas the members of the scheme are not required to make any 
contributions to the scheme. The scheme is administered by the management of the Company under the supervision and 
directions of the Board of Directors of the Company. The amount recognized on statement of financial position represents present 
value of defined benefit obligation. 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation 

As at beginning of the year 
Charged to profit or loss for the year 
Benefits paid during the year 
Benefits due but not paid 
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 

13.2 

13.4 

Rupees 

20,529,847 
5,434,395 

(5,454,989) 
(2,992,241) 
1,755,997 

Rupees 

109,092,189 
7,765,962 

(81,711,134) 
(13,143,786) 
(1,473,384) 

As at end of the year 19,273,009 20,529,847 

Charge to profit or loss 

Current service cost 2,851,473 19,438,548 
Past service cost 177,753 - 
Interest cost 2,405,169 10,020,518 
Gain arising on settlements - (21,693,104) 

5,434,395 7,765,962 

The charge to profit or loss has been allocated as follows 

Cost of sales 28.2 3,779,237 5,532,342 
Selling and distribution expenses 30.1 259,219 
Administrative expenses 31.1 1,655,158 1,974,401 

5,434,395 7,765,962 

Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income 

Actuarial (Ioss)/gain arising from changes in: 
Financial assumptions 49,442 36,295 
Experience adjustments (1,805,439) 1,437,089 

(1,755,997) 1,473,384 

Average duration of the defined benefit obligation 

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 3 years. 

Expected charge to profit or loss for the next financial year 

The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following actuarial risks: 

Interest risk: The discount rate used in determination of present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined by 
reference to market yield at the reporting date on government bonds since there is no deep market in long term corporate bonds in 
Pakistan. An increase in market yield resulting in a higher discount rate will decrease the defined benefit liability. 

Longevity risk: The present value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the expected 
remaining working lives of employees. An increase in the expected remaining working lives will increase the defined benefit 

Salary risk: The present value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to future salaries of employees. An increase 
in salary of employees will increase the defined benefit obligation. 

13.1 

13.2 

13.3 

13.4 

13.5 

13.6 

The expected charge to profit or loss for the year ending 30 June 2026 amounts to Rs. 8.24 million. 

13.7 Risk factors 
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14 DEFERRED GRANT 

The State Bank of Pakistan ('SBP'] through IH&SMEFD circular no. 1 of 2020 dated 17 March 2020, introduced 'Temporary 
Economic Refinance Facility' ('TERF']. The purpose of this schemes was to provide relief to dampen the effects of COVID - 19 by 
providing loans at interest rates that are below normal lending rates. 

The Company obtained financing of Rs. 85.669 million under the TERF scheme (see notes 11.2 and 11.3). The benefit of below 
market interest rates, measured as the difference between the fair value of loan on the date of disbursement and its face value on 
that date has been recognised as deferred grant. 

14.1 The amount recognized on the statement of financial position, as at the reporting date, represents the following: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

MCB Bank Limited I Temporary Economic Refinance Facility 
MCB Bank Limited I Temporary Economic Refinance Facility 

11.2 
11.3 

Rupees Rupees 

145,462 
665,553 

Current maturity presented under current liabilities 18 
811,015 

(736,843) 

74,172 

14.2 The movement during the year is as follows: 

As at beginning of the year 811,015 2,321,085 
Amortized during the year (811,015) (1,510,070) 

As at end of the year 811,015 

15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Trade creditors 15.1 158,163,944 161,296,871 
Accrued liabilities 26,187451 42,773,492 
Advances from customers 90,000000 - 
Security deposits 12 6010,000 - 
Deductions against vehicle scheme 15.2 1,099,800 4,638,225 
Statutory levies payable 15.3 4,074,105 31,619,713 
Sales tax payable 2,336,275 
Other payables 15.4 33,728,563 

285,535,300 276,393,139 

15.1 Trade creditors include Rs. 15,023,925 (30-Jun-24: Rs. 15,023,925) due to a related party against rent of power generator. 

15.2 These represent deductions from employees' salaries on account of vehicle scheme whereby the Company and employees share 
a portion of the cost of vehicle. The vehicles are registered in the name of employee or leasing company in case of leased 
vehicles. The cost of vehicles is borne by the Company initially and is recovered from employees on monthly basis. 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Statutory levies payable 

Rupees Rupees 

Workers' Welfare Fund 3,833,741 3,833,741 
Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 15.3.3 240,364 27,785,972 

4,074,105 31,619,713 

Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 

As at beginning of the year 27,785,972 45,001,547 
Charged to profit or loss for the year 240,364 27,785,972 
Paid/adjusted during the year (27,785,972) (45,001,547) 

As at end of the year 240,364 27,785,972 

15.3 

15.3.3 
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15.4 These include withholding taxes payable amounting to Rs. nil (30-Jun-24: Rs. 33.728 million). 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

16 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

Secured 
Running finances 16.1 19,954,112 

Unsecured 
Loan from directors and sponsors 16.2 816,984,966 449,100,000 
Book overdraft 16.3 601053 - 

817,586,019 449,100,000 

817,586,019 469,054,112 

16.1 These facilities were obtained from various banking companies for working capital requirements and were secured by charge over 
current assets and operating fixed assets of the Company, pledge of stock, subordination of loan from directors and sponsors, and 
personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. These finances carried interest at three months KIBOR plus 2.50% per annum, 
payable quarterly. All facilities have been settled during the year and stand expired on their respected review dates. 

16.2 This represents temporary loans obtained from directors and sponsors of the Company. These loans are unsecured, interest free 
and repayable on demand. Movement during the year is as follows: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

As at beginning of the year 449,100,000 - 
Obtained during the year 449,100,000 
Transferred from equity 8 102,000,000 - 
Transferred from non-current liabilities 10 265,884,966 

As a end of the year 816,984,966 449,100,000 

16.3 These represent cheques issued by the Company in excess of balances at bank which have been presented for payments after the 
reporting period. 

16.4 The aggregate un-availed short term borrowing facilities as at the reporting date amounts to nil (30-Jun-24: Rs. 53.046 million). 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

17 ACCRUED INTEREST ON BORROWINGS 

Long term borrowings 2,247,435 
Short term borrowings 9,102,782 

11,350,217 

18 CURRENT MATURITY OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Long term borrowings ii 27,445,509 
Deferred grant 14 736,843 

28,182,352 

19 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

19.1 Contingencies 

19.1.1 Guarantees issue by banking companies on behalf of the Company outstanding as at the reporting date are as follows: 

kSi<Ij 
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30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Bank guarantees 61,910,000 64,870,000 

19.1.2 In respect of Tax Year 2015, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue ['DCIR'J issued notice to amend assessment under section 
122(9) of the Ordinance on 11 June 2018 whereby the DCIR raised observations related to purchases, creditors, additions to plant 
and machinery, admissibility of various expenses and deductions. The Company responded to the notice on 29 June 2018 wherein 
submissions regarding DClRs observations were made. The proceedings were completed and an order to amend original 
assessment dated 31 July 2018 was issued by the DCIR under section 122(1) of the Ordinance wherein a demand of Rs. 29.315 
million was created by making certain additions to taxable income and disallowing certain expenses and tax credits. The Company 
filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) ['CIR(A)] on 28 August 2018, which was disposed of through an 
appellate order dated 19 February 2021 issued under section 129(1) of the Ordinance, wherein certain additions made by the DCIR 
were remanded back. The proceedings are still pending finalization at DCIR's department's end 

19.1.3 In respect of Tax Year 2021, Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue ['ACIR') issued a notice to amend assessment under 
section 122(9) of the Ordinance on 14 January 2022 whereby the ACIR raised observations related to additions to vehicles, 
admissible tax deductions, brought forward losses, admissibility of tax credits and allowability of various expenses and deductions. 
The Company responded to this notice vide letter dated 10 June 2022 wherein submissions regarding ACIR's observations were 
made. The proceedings were completed and an order to amend original assessment dated 30 June 2022 was issued by the ACIR 
under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein a demand of Rs. 11.486 million was created by making certain additions to taxable 
income and disallowing certain expenses and tax credits. The Company filed an appeal before CIR(A) on 26 July 2022, which was 
disposed of through an appellate order dated 21 October 2022 issued under section 129(1) of the Ordinance, wherein certain 
additions made by the ACIR were remanded back while relief was allowed to the Company by deleting some of the additions as 
made by the ACIR. The proceedings are still pending finalization at ACIR's department's end. 

19.2 Commitments 

There are no known commitments as at the reporting date. 
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20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

30-Jun-25 

COSTIRE VALUED AMOUNT DEPRECIA11ONIIMPAIRMENT Net book 
As at As at As at As at value as at 

01-Jul-24 Additions Revaluation Transfers Disposals 30-Jun-25 Rate 01-Jan-24 Forthe year Revaluation Transfers Disposals 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-25 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees % Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Operating fixed assets 

Freehold land 101,370,000 259,530,000 360,900,000 360,900,000 

Buildings 339,129,484 871,074,394 1,210,203,878 5 216,724,906 6,120,229 572,391,078 795,236,213 414,967,665 

Plantandmacbinery 1,957,052,113 1,957,052,113 5 1,039,774,362 45,863,888 459,483,863 1,545,122,113 411,930,000 

Services and otherequipment 2,976,737 2,976,737 10 2,621,769 35,497 - 2.657,266 319,471 

Office equipment 9,529,233 9,529,233 10 8,239,111 129,012 8,368,123 1,161,110 

Furniture and fixtures 7,627,523 7,627,523 10 7,117,050 51,047 7,168,097 459,426 

Arms and ammunitions 122,790 122,790 10 93,623 2,917 96,540 26,250 

Vehicles 43,128,278 (4,165,060) 38963,218 20 31,252,135 1,737,636 (2,383,130) 30,606,641 8,356,577 

2,460,936,158 1,130,604,394 (4,165,060) 3,587,375,492 1,305,822,956 53,940,226 1,031,874,941 (2,383,130) 2,389,254,993 1,198,120,499 

Capital work in progress 

Buildings 

Plant and machinery 

2,460,936,158 1,130,604,394 (4,165,060) 3,587,375,492 1,305,822,956 53,940,226 1,031,874,941 (2,383,130) 2,389,254,993 1,198,120,499 



SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

30-Jun-24 

COST/REVALUED AMOUNT DEPRECIATION Net book 
As at As at As at As at value as at 

01-Jul-23 Additions Revaluation Transfers Disposals 30-Jun-24 Rate 01-Jan-23 For the year Revaluation Transfers Disposals 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees % Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Operating fixed assets 

Freehold land 101,370,000 101,370,000 - 101,370,000 

Buildings 339129,484 339,129,484 5 210,282,559 6,442,347 216,724,906 122,404,578 

Plant and machinery 1,952,345,245 4,706,868 1,957,052,113 5 991,537,873 48,236,489 - 1,039,774,362 917,277,751 

Servicesandotherequipment 2,976,737 2,976,737 10 2,582,328 39,441 - - 2,621,769 354,968 

Offlceequipment 9,529,233 - 9,529,233 10 8,095,764 143,347 - 8,239,111 1,290,122 

Furnitureandfixtures 7,627,523 - - - 7,627,523 10 7,060,331 56,719 - 7,117,050 510,473 

Arms and ammunitions 122,790 - 122,790 10 90,382 3,241 93,623 29,167 

Vehicles 53,858,924 (10,730,646) 43,128,278 20 34.142.783 3,549,347 (6,439,995) 31,252,135 11,876,143 

2,466,959,936 4,706,868 (10,730,646) 2.460,936,158 1,253,792,020 58,470,931 - (6,439,995) 1,305,822,956 1,155,113,202 

Capital work in progress 

Buildings 

Plant and machinery 4,706,868 (4.706.868) 

4,706,868 (4,706,868) 

2,466,959,936 4,706.868 (10,730,646) 2,460,936,158 1,253,792,020 58,470,931 (6,439,995) 1,305,822,956 1,155,113,202 

201 Freehold land of the Company is located at District Kasur wtih a total area of 311 Kanal 18 Marta. 

20.2 Transfers represent assets transferred from capital work in progress to operating fixed assets on becoming ready and available for intended use. 
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20.3 Disposal of operating fixed assets 

Vehicles 

Suzuki Cultus 
Honda CG 125 
Suzuki Cultus 

30-Jun-25 
Cost! 

revalued amount 
Rupees '000 

2,012,080 
82,000 

2,070,980 

Accumulated 
depreciation 
Rupees '000 

1,049,429 
57,977 

1,275,724 

Net 
book value 

Rupees '000 

962,651 
24,023 

795,256 

Disposal 
proceeds 

Rupees '000 

962,651 
24,023 

1,127,534 

Loss 
on disposal 

Rupees '000 

332,278 

Mode of 
disposal 

Company policy 
Company policy 
Company policy 

Particulars of buyer 

Nouman Maqbool (employee) 
QaiserJavaid (employee) 
Zeeshan Arshad (employee) 

4,165,060 2,383,130 1,781,930 2,114,208 332,278 

30-Jun-24 
Cost! 

revalued amount 
Rupees 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

Rupees 

Net 
book value 

Rupees 

Disposal 
proceeds 
Rupees 

Gain 
on disposal 

Rupees 

Mode of 
disposal Particulars of buyer 

Vehicles 

Honda CD 70 68,000 55,379 12,621 14,023 1,402 Company policy Maqsood Ahmed (employee), Lahore. 
Honda CD 70 83,500 48871 34.629 33,988 (641) Company policy TauseefAhmed (employee), Lahore. 
Honda City 2,443,130 1,430,263 1,012,867 1,012,867 - Company policy Abdus Salam (employee), Lahore. 
Honda City 2,519,130 1,166,189 1,352,941 1,352,941 - Company policy Safdar lnayatAli (employee), Lahore. 
Honda Civic 1,417,826 862,089 555,737 566,223 10,486 Company policy Sajid Jamil (employee), Lahore. 
Honda CD 70 68,405 47,430 20,975 22,501 1,526 Company policy Amanat All (employee), Lahore. 
Toyota Corolla Altis 1,979,250 1,582,907 396,343 653,065 256,722 Company policy Saleem Raufi (employee), Lahore. 
Honda Civic 1,380,808 839,581 541.227 551,439 10,212 Company policy Muhammad Nadeem (employee), Lahore. 
Honda City 770,597 407,286 363,311 363,311 - Company policy Muhammad Au (employee), Lahore. 

10,730,646 6,439,995 4,290,651 4,570,358 279,707 
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20.4 

20.5 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows: 

Cost of sales 

Administrative expenses 

Rupees 

52,019,614 
1,920,612 

Rupees 

54,718,277 
3,752,654 

53,940,226 58,470931 

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 

Most recent valuation of land, building and plant and machinery was carried out by an independent valuer, Joseph Lobo (Private) 
Limited, on 30 June 2025 and was incorporated in these financial statements. For basis of valuation, refer to note 2.3.2(c) and (d). 

Had there been no revaluation, the net book values of revalued items of property, plant and equipment would have been as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Land 59,445,942 59,445,942 
Building 93,949,945 98,894,679 
Plant and machinery 959,899,148 1,010,420,156 

20.6 As per most recent valuation, forced sale values of land, building and plant and machinery are as follows: 

Rupees 

Land 

 

306,765,000 
352,722,515 Building 

 

Plant and machinery 

 

350,140,500 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

Financial institutions 21.1 3,445,500 8,925,500 
Suppliers and contractors 21.2 10,311,360 10,311,360 

13,756,860 19,236,860 

21.1 These represent security deposits against bank guarantees. These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost' under IFRS 
9 which are required to be carried at amortized cost. However, due to uncertainties regarding dates of refund of these deposits, 
which are dependent on expiry/termination of underlying contracts secured by bank guarantees, these have been carried at cost. 

21.2 These have been deposited with various suppliers and contractors under various contracts and are refundable on termination of 
contracts. These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost' under IFRS 9 which are required to be carried at amortized 
cost. However, due to uncertainties regarding dates of refund of these deposits, these have been carried at cost. 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS 

Stores 

Rupees 

13,102,377 

Rupees 

14,183,003 
Spares and loose tools 7,606,567 7,606,568 

20,708,944 21,789,571 
Impairment allowance for slow moving and obsolete items 22.1 (10,230,327) 

10,478,617 21,789,571 
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Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

22.1 Impairment allowance for slow moving and obsolete items 

As at beginning of the year - 
Recognized during the year 28 10230327 

As at end of the year i 0,230,327 

22.2 There are no spare parts held exclusively for capitalization as at the reporting date. 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Gross amounts due 793,017 8918840 
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses 23.1 (793,017) (2,526735) 

6,392,105 

23.1 Impairment allowance for expected credit losses 

As at beginning of the year 2,526,735 
Recognized during the year 793,017 
Reversed during the year - 
Written-off during the year (2,526,735) 

3,671,185 

(1,144,450) 

As at end of the year 793,017 2,526,735 

24 SHORT TERM ADVANCES 

Advances to suppliers - 34,800 
Advances to employees 24.1 3,049,000 3,820,503 

3,049,000 3,855,303 

24.1 These represent advances to employees against future salaries and post employment benefits in accordance with the Company 
policy. 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

25 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 

Margin deposits 2,500,000 86,577,832 
Prepaid statutory levies 749,233 18,637,083 
Other prepaid expenses 26,311 526,021 

3,275,544 105,740,936 

25.1 These represent deposits with banking companies under lien against banking credit facilities. 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

26 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Cash in hand 749,895 159,309 
Bank balances 5,185,205 28,606,824 

5,935,100 28,766,133 
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27 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 

Sale of goods 

Rupees Rupees 

- yarn 22,690,367 2,536597,725 
- waste 54,528,093 

22,690,367 2,591,125818 
Sales tax (3,461,243) (368,248,035) 

19,229,124 2,222,877,783 

28 COST OF SALES 

Raw material consumed 28.1 - 1 395,376,545 
Salaries, wages and benefits 28.2 31,692,119 199,949,765 
Stores and spares consumed 49,681,612 
Power and fuel 18,427,507 408,717,322 
Repair and maintenance 250 19,278,836 
Vehicle running and maintenance 9,000 2,452,804 
Insurance 2,583,680 5,078,444 
Traveling and conveyance 3,254 739,172 
Entertainment 26,670 668,928 
Stores and spares written-off 1,080,627 - 
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 459,483,863 
Impairment allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventories 22.1 10,230,327 - 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 20.4 52,019,614 54,718,277 
Other factory overheads 43,226 652,185 

Manufacturing cost 575,600,137 2,137,313,890 

Work in process 

As at beginning of the year 41,523,790 
As at end of the year 

41,523,790 

Cost of goods manufactured 575,600,137 2,178,837,680 

Finished goods 
As at beginning of the year 171,608,077 
Purchased during the year 19136,927 
As at end of the year 

19,136,927 171,608,077 

594,737,064 2,350,445,757 

28.1 Raw material consumed 

As at beginning of the year 214,817,725 
Purchased during the year 1,180,558,820 
As at end of the year 

1,395,376,545 

28.2 These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 3.78 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 5.53 million). 
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Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

OTHER INCOME 

Gain on financial instruments 

Rupees Rupees 

Excess liabilities written back 9,271,009 
Foreign exchange gain 279,636 

9,271,009 279,636 
Other income 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 20.3 332,278 279,707 

332,278 279,707 

9,603,287 559,343 

30 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES 

Salaries and benefits 30.1 949,256 3,444,859 
Commission 9,197,274 
Vehicle running and maintenance 327,596 
Others 295,774 

949,256 13,265,503 

30.1 These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits amounting to Rs. nil (30-Jun-24: Rs. 0.26 million). 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Directors' meeting fee 31.1 60,000 105,000 
Salaries and benefits 19,413,364 29,698,001 
Utilities 372,884 5,437,941 
Printing and stationery 101,555 675,097 
Communication 782,979 1,466,475 
Repair and maintenance 83,450 340,695 
Vehicles running and maintenance 31.2 228,426 1,946,332 
Fee and subscription 59,630 237,338 
Traveling and conveyance 7,722,724 
Legal and professional 180,000 180,000 
Auditor's remuneration 31.1 550,000 975.000 
Entertainment 603,625 1,247,223 
Insurance 861,225 1,743,312 
Depreciation on property plant and equipment 20.4 1,920,612 3,752,654 
Other administrative expenses 15,000 4,762,893 

25,232,750 60,290,685 

31.1 These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 1.66 million (30-Jun-25: Rs. 1.97 million). 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

31.2 Auditor's remuneration 

Annual statutory audit 350,000 750,000 
Limited scope review 125,000 125,000 
Review report under corporate governance 50,000 75,000 
Out of pocket expenses 25,000 25,000 

550,000 975,000 
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Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Loss on financial instruments 

Other expenses 
Impairment allowance on advances to suppliers 
Miscellaneous receivables written-off 

Rupees 

- 
2,620,433 

Rupees 

3,568,439 

2,620,433 3,568,439 

2,620,433 3,568,439 

FINANCE COST 

Interest on borrowings: 
loan from directors and sponsors 57,697,038 68,518,556 
long term finances 531,225 4,469,931 
short term borrowings 1,679,132 71.226,527 
Interest on loan from directors and sponsors waived 10 (57,697,038) (68,518,556) 

2,210,357 75,696,458 
Bank charges and commission 254,106 2,228,693 

2,464,463 77,925,151 

PROVISION FOR STATUTORY LEVIES 

Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
Current year 240,364 27,785,972 
Prior year 

240,364 27,785,973 

Levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ['the Ordinance'] have been recognized under section 113 of the Ordinance. 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

35 PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 

Current taxation 
Deferred taxation 

35.1 No provision for current and deferred taxation has been recognized as the Company is subject to and expects to remain in non- 
tax/levy regime for the foreseeable future. 

35.2 The income tax assessments of the Company up to and including tax year 2024 have been completed by the concerned income 
tax authorities or are deemed to have been so completed under the provisions of section 120 of the Ordinance except as referred 
to in note and 

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE 

Earnings 

Loss after income taxes Rupees (598,204,936) (308,699,932) 

Shares 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding No. of shares 29,840,607 29,840,607 

Basic loss per share Rupees (20.05) (10.34) 

32 

33 

34 
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Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Rupees Rupees 

Cash and bank balances 26 5,935,100 28,766,133 

5,935,100 28,766,133 

38 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 

Loss before income taxes (598,204,936) (308,699,932) 
Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 

Interest on borrowings 2,210,357 75,696,458 
Miscellaneous receivables written-off 2,620,433 
Excess liabilities written back (9,271,009) 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (332,278) (279,707) 
Stores and spares written-off 1,080,627 
Impairment allowance/(reversal) for expected credit losses 793,017 (1,144,450) 
Impairment allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventories 10,230,327 
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 459,483,863 
Depreciation on property plant and equipment 53,940,226 58,470,931 
Provision for levies under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 240,364 27,785,973 
Provision for employees retirement benefits 5,434,395 7,765,962 

526,430,322 168,295.167 

(71,774,614) (140,404,765) 
Changes in working capital 

Long term deposits 5,480,000 1,936,026 
Stores, spares and loose tools 1,404,708 
Stock in trade 427,949,592 
Trade receivables 5,305,375 133,708,387 
Short term advances 806,303 2,187,256 
Short term deposits and prepayments 81,957,109 3,106,761 
Sales tax refundable/adjustable 4,877,879 5,344,729 
Trade and other payables 29,799,736 (149,876,336) 

128,226,402 425,761,123 

Cash generated from operations 56,451,788 285,356,358 

39 CHANGES FROM FINANCING CASH FLOWS 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Long term 

finances 
Rupees 

Short term 
borrowings 

Rupees 

Long term 
finances 
Rupees 

Short term 
borrowings 

Rupees 

As at beginning of the year 39,769,784 469,054,112 63,736,027 522,617,572 
Obtained during the year 449,100,000 
Unwinding of deferred grant 811,015 1,510,070 - 
Repayment of long term finances (40,580,799) (25,476,313) 
Transfer from equity 102,000,000 
Transferred from non-current liabilities 265,884,966 
Net decrease in short term borrowings (19,353,059) - (502,663,460) 
As at end of the year 817,586,019 39,769,784 469,054,112 
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40 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 

The details of the Company's related parties, with whom the Company had transactions during the year or has balances 
outstanding as at the reporting date, are as follows: 

Name of related party Nature and basis of relationship 

Kohinoor Power Company Limited Associate [Significant Influence] 
Mr. M. Zeid Yousuf Saigol Key Management Personnel [Chief Executive] 
Mr. M. Naseem Saigol Key Management Personnel [Director] 
Mr. M. Murad Saigol Key Management Personnel [Director] 
Mr. Samir lqbal Saigol Key Management Personnel [Director] 
Mr. Jamal Naseem Key Management Personnel [Director] 
Mr. M. Azam Saigol Sponsor [Shareholder] 
Ms. Amber Haroon Saigol Sponsor [Shareholder] 

The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties entered into in the ordinary course of 
business are carried out on commercial terms and conditions which are equivalent to those prevailing in an arm's length 
transaction. Detail of transactions with related parties during the reporting period and balances with them as at the reporting date 
are as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Transactions with related parties 

Nature of relationship 

Associated companies 

Nature of transactions 

Power generator rent 

Rupees Rupees 

6,000,000 
Key management personnel Short term employee benefits 6,900,000 8,025,000 

Interest expense on borrowings 27,027,350 32,096,535 
Interest on borrowings waived 27,027,350 32,096,535 
Meeting fee 60,000 105,000 

Sponsors Interest expense on borrowings 30,669,688 36,422,021 
Interest on borrowings waived 30,669,688 36,422,021 

Balances with related parties 

Nature of relationship 

Associated companies 

Nature of transactions 

Trade creditors 15,023,925 15,023925 
Key management personnel Borrowings 525,650,000 525,650000 

Short term employee benefits payable 575,000 660,000 
Sponsors Borrowings 291,334,966 291,334,966 

CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 

Disaggregation of revenue 

This is no further disaggregation of revenue as the Company operating as single operating segment and all revenue during the year 
was recognized at a point in time. 

41.2 Contract balances 

There are no contract assets as at the reporting date. The information about receivables and contract liabilities arising from 
contracts with customers is as follows: 

Nature of balance Presented in financial statements as Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Receivables Trade receivables 23 6,392,105 
Contract liabilities Advances from customers 15 90,000,000 
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41.2.1 Changes in contract assets and liabilities 

There are no contract assets as at the reporting date. Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year are as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

As at beginning of the year 30,342,879 
Revenue recognized against contract liability as at beginning of the year (30,342,879) 
Net increase due to cash received in excess of revenue recognized 90,000,000 

As at end of the year 90,000,000 

41.3 Impairment losses 

The Company during the year has recognized Rs. 0.79 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. nil) as impairment loss for expected credit losses on 
receivables (trade receivables) arising from the Companys contracts with customers. Further, impairment allowance amounting to 
Rs. nil (30-Jun-24: Rs. 1.14 million) was reversed during the year on actual recovery. (See note 23.1). 

42 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets and liabilities as at the reporting date are as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

42.1 Financial assets 

Cash in hand 26 749,895 159,309 

Financial assets at amortized cost 
Long term deposits 21 13,756,860 19,236,860 
Trade receivables 23 6,392,105 
Advances to employees 25 3,049,000 3,820,503 
Margin deposits 25 2,500,000 86,577,832 
Bank balances 26 5,185,205 28,606,824 

24,491,065 144,634,124 

25,240,960 144,793,433 

42.2 Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
Loans from directors and sponsors 8 265,884,966 
Long term borrowings 11 39,769,784 
Long term deposits 12 - 6,010,000 
Trade creditors 15 158,163,944 161,296,871 
Accrued liabilities 15 26,187,451 42,773,492 
Security deposits 15 6,010,000 
Unclaimed dividend 485,351 485,351 
Short term borrowings 16 817,586,019 469,054,112 
Accrued interest on borrowings 17 - 11,350,217 

1,008,432,765 996,624,793 

43 FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency risk. 
interest rate risk and price risk). These risks affect revenues, expenses and assets and liabilities of the Company. 

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of risk management framework. The Board of 
Directors has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management framework. The risk policy focuses on 
unpredictability of financial markets, the Company's exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing such risks. The management team of the Company is responsible for administering and 
monitoring the financial and operational financial risk management throughout the Company in accordance with the risk 
management framework. 
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The Company's exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial position and performance, and forecast 
transactions of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows: 

43.1 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations. 

43.1.1 Credit risk management practices 

In order to minimize credit risk, the Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and limiting 
significant exposure to any single counterparty. The Company only transacts with counterparties that have reasonably high external 
credit ratings. Where an external rating is not available, the Company uses an internal credit risk grading mechanism. Particularly 
for customers, a dedicated team responsible for the determination of credit limits uses a credit scoring system to assess the 
potential as well as existing customers' credit quality and assigns or updates credit limits accordingly. The ageing profile of trade 
receivables and individually significant balances, along with collection activities are reviewed on a regular basis. High risk 
customers are identified and restrictions are placed on future trading, including suspending future shipments and administering 
dispatches on a prepayment basis or confirmed letters of credit. 

The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each financial asset on an individual basis at each reporting date to ensure that 
adequate loss allowance is made in accordance with the assessment of credit risk for each financial asset. The Company 
considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has reasonably high external credit rating or if an external rating 
is not available, the asset has an internal rating of 'performing'. Performing means that the counterparty has no past due amounts 
or otherwise there is no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due in the normal course of business based on 
history with the counterparty. 

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at 
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that 
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost 
or effort. Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has 
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Company 
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise, This is usually the case with various customers of the 
Company where the Company has long standing business relationship with these customers and any amounts that are past due by 
more than 30 days in the normal course of business are considered 'performing' based on history with the customers. Therefore 
despite the foregoing, the Company considers some past due trade receivables to have low credit risk where the counterparty has 
a good history of meeting its contractual cash flow obligations and is expected to maintain the same in future. 

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk. 

The Company considers 'default' to have occurred when the financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is considered to be 
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset 
have occurred. The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe 
financial condition and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 

The Company's credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories and basis for recognizing impairment allowance 
for Expected Credit Losses ['ECL') for each category: 

Category Description Basis for recognizing ECL  

Performing The counterparty has low credit risk Trade receivables: Lifetime ECL 

Other assets: 12-month ECL 
Doubtful Credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition Lifetime ECL 
In-default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL 
Write-off There is no realistic prospect of recovery Amount is written-off 
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43.1.2 Exposure to credit risk 

Credit risk principally arises from 'financial assets carried at amortized cost held by the Company as at the reporting date. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is as follows: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Long term deposits 
Trade receivables 
Advances to employees 
Margin deposits 
Bank balances 

21 
23 
25 
25 
26 

13,756,860 
793,017 

3,049,000 
2,500,000 
5,185,205 

19.236,860 
8,918,840 
3,820,503 

86,577,832 
28,606,824 

25,284,082 147,160,859 

43.1.3 Credit quality and impairment 

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to internal credit risk 
grading. The credit quality of the Company's financial assets exposed to credit risk is as follows: 

30-Jun-25 
External credit Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Loss 

rating risk grading life-time ECL amount a I Iowa nce 
Rupees Rupees 

Long term deposits AA - AAA 
N/A 

Trade receivables N/A 
N/A 

Advances to employees N/A 

Margin deposits AI+ 

Bank balances A3 - AI+  

N/A 12-month ECL 
Performing 12-month ECL 

Performing Lifetime ECL 
In-default Lifetime ECL 

Performing 12-month ECL 

N/A N/A 

Performing 12-month ECL 

25,284,082 793,017 

30-J un-24 
External credit 

rating 

Long term deposits AA - AAA 
N/A 

Trade receivables N/A 
N/A 

Advances to employees N/A 

Margin deposits A1+ 

Bank balances A3 - Al +  

Internal credit 12-month or 
risk grading life-time ECL 

N/A 12-month ECL 
Performing 12-month ECL 

Performing Lifetime ECL 
In-default Lifetime ECL 

Performing 12-month ECL 

Performing 12-month ECL 

Performing 12-month ECL  

Gross carrying 
amount 

Rupees 

8,925,500 
10,311,360 

19,236,860 

6,392,105 
2,526,735 
8,918,840 

3,820,503 

86,577,832 

28,606,824 

147,160,859 2.526,735 

(a) Long term deposits 

These include deposits with financial institutions against bank guarantees and those with suppliers and contractors, mainly 
utility companies, against various contracts. These financial institutions have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by 
various independent credit rating agencies. Non-performance is not expected from suppliers and contractors as these mainly 
include utility companies. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no 
impairment loss allowance has been made. 
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(b) Trade receivables 

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime 
ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on trade receivables by using internal credit risk gradings. The 
following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables as at the reporting date: 

30-Jun-25 
Internal 

risk grading 
Average 
loss rate 

% 

Gross 
amount due 

Rupees 

Accumulated 
impairment 

Rupees 

Not yet due Performing 0.00 
Past due by 31-90 days Performing 0.00 
Past due by 91-180 days Performing 0.00 - 
Past due by more than 180 days In-default 100.00 793,017 793,017 

793,017 793,017 
30-Jun-24 

Internal Average Gross Accumulated 
risk grading loss rate amount due impairment 

% Rupees Rupees 

Not yet due Performing 0.00 - - 
Fast due by 31-90 days Performing 0.05 5,425,298 2.638 
Fast due by 91-180 days Performing 12.50 793,017 99127 
Past due by more than 180 days In-default 89.80 2,700,525 2,424,970 

8,918,840 2,526,735 

(C) Advances to employees 

Advances to employees have been given against future salaries and post-employment benefits. Therefore, no credit risk has 
been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no loss allowance has been made. 

(d) Margin deposits 

These are placed with financial institutions with reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various independent credit 
rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial 
standing, management does not expect any credit loss. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial 
assets and accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made. 

(e) Bank balances 

The bankers of the Company have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various independent credit rating agencies. 
Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, 
management does not expect any credit loss. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and 
accordingly no impairment loss allowance has been made. 

43.1.4 Concentrations of credit risk 

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk, as at the reporting date, by type of counter-party is as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Customers 793,017 8,918,840 
Banking companies and financial institutions 11,130,705 124,110,156 
Employees 3,049,000 3,820,503 
Others 10,311,360 10,311,360 

25,284,082 147,160,859 

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, except for trade receivables. The Company's one (30-Jun-23: two) significant 
customers account for Rs. 0.79 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 7.85 million) of trade receivables as at the reporting date, apart from which, 
exposure to any single customer does not exceed 10% (30-Jun-24: 10%) of trade receivables as at the reporting date. Impairment 
allowance recognized against amounts due from these significant customers amounts to Rs. 0.79 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 2.42 
million). 
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SARITOW SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025 

43.1.5 Collateral held 

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets. 

43.1.6 Changes in Impairment allowance for expected credit losses 

The changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses are as follows: 

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

As at beginning of the year 
Impairment loss on trade receivables: 

recognized during the year 
reversed during the year 

Net amount recognized in profit or loss 
Written-off during the year 

As at end of the year 793,017 2,526,735 

43.2 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 

43.2.1 Liquidity risk management 

The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 
to the Company's reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve 
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cashflows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial 
assets and liabilities. Details of undrawn facilities that the Company has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are referred to 
in note 16.4. There were no changes in the Company's approach to liquidity risk management during the year. 

Following the cessation of the Company's production operations in the previous year, the Company has primarily depended on its 
cash reserves. While it has remained current in servicing its debt obligations, as of the reporting date all banking credit facilities 
have expired and have not been renewed. Payments to creditors have been delayed, as available cash reserves have largely been 
utilized for debt servicing and operating expenses. Consequently, the Company is currently experiencing a liquidity crunch. 

43.2.2 Exposure to liquidity risk 

The following is the analysis of contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments. 

Loans from directors and sponsors 
Long term borrowings 
Long term deposits 

30-Jun-25 
Carrying 
amount 
Rupees 

- 

Contractual 
cash flows 

Rupees 

One year One to More than 
or less five years five years 

Rupees Rupees Rupees 

- 
Trade creditors 158,163,944 158,163,944 158,163,944 
Accrued liabilities 26,187,451 26,187,451 26,187,451 
Security deposits 6,010,000 6,010,000 6,010,000 
Unclaimed dividend 485,351 485,351 485,351 
Short term borrowings 817,586,019 817,506,019 817,586,019 
Accrued interest on borrowings - 12,720,257 12,720,257 

1,008,432,765 1,021,153,022 1,021,153,022 
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30-Jun-24 
Carrying Contractual One year One to More than 
amount cash flows or less five years five years 

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Loans from directors and sponsors 265,884966 265,884,996 
Long term borrowings 39,769,784 73,986,896 
Long term deposits 6,010,000 6,010,000 
Trade creditors 161,296,871 161,296,871 
Accrued liabilities 42,773,492 42,773,492 
Security deposits - 

Unclaimed dividend 485,351 485,351 
Short term borrowings 469,054,112 544.673,835 
Accrued interest on borrowings 11,350,217 16,481,644 

- 265,884,996 

32,067,883 41,919,013 

6,010,000 

161,296,871 - 

42,773,492 

485,351 

544,673,835 

16,481,644 

996,624,793 1,111,593,085 797,779,076 313,814,009 

43.3 Market risk 

43.3.1 Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Company is not exposed to currency risk. 

43.3.2 Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest 
rates. 

(a) Interest rate risk management 

The Company manages interest rate risk by analyzing its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Cash flow interest rate risk 
is managed by simulating various scenarios taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative 
financing. Based on these scenarios, the Company calculates impact on profit after taxation and equity of defined interest rate 
shift, mostly 100 basis points. There were no changes in Company's approach to interest rate risk management during the year. 

(b) Exposure to interest rate risk 

The effective interest rates for interest/profit bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the financial 
statements. The Company's interest/profit bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows: 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Rupees Rupees 

Fixed rate instruments 

Financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

Variable rate instruments 

Financial assets 

Financial liabilities 59,723,896 

(C) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 

The Company does not account for its fixed rate instruments at fair value. 

(d) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments - . . - 

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have decreased profit for the year and equity as 
at the reporting date by Rs. 0.00 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 59.72 million). A decrease of 100 basis points would have had an equal 
but opposite effect on loss for the year and equity. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange 
rates, remain constant and ignores the impact, if any, on provision for taxation for the year. 
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43.3.3 Price risk 

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors 
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments. The Company is not 
exposed to price risk. 

44 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain 
future development of the business. Any temporary shortfall is met through interest free loans from directors and sponsors. The 
Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and seeks to keep a balance between the higher return that might be possible with 
higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Company monitors capital 
using the gearing ratio which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises long term finances and loan from directors 
and sponsors including current maturities. Total capital employed includes total equity, as shown in the statement of financial 
position. plus debt. The Company's strategy is to maintain an optimal capital structure in order to minimize cost of capital. Gearing 
ratio of the Company as at the reporting date is as follows: 

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Total debt Rupees - 306,391,593 
Total equity Rupees 112,942,911 256,690,528 

Total capital employed Rupees 112,942,911 563,082,121 

Gearing ratio % age 54.41 

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, except those related to maintenance of debt covenants, 
commonly imposed by the providers of debt finance. There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management 
during the year. 

45 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The Company measures some of its assets at fair value. The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value 
and the information about how the fair values of these financial instruments are determined are as follows: 

45.1 Financial instruments 

45.1.1 Recurring fair value measurements 

There are no recurring fair value measurements of financial instruments as at the reporting date. 

45.1.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements 

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements of financial instruments as at the reporting date. 

45.1.3 Financial instruments not measured at fair value 

The management considers the carrying amount of all financial instruments not measured at fair value at the end of each reporting 
period to approximate their fair values as at the reporting date. 

45.2 Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments 

45.2.1 Recurring fair value measurements 

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about how the fair values are determined is as 
follows: 

Assets/liabilities Hierarchy Valuation technique and key inputs 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Land Level 2 Land is valued using market comparable approach 360,900,000 101,370,000 
that reflects recent transaction prices for similar 
properties. Significant inputs include estimated 
purchase price, including non-refundable purchase 
taxes and other costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition. 
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Assets/liabilities Hierarchy Valuation technique and key Inputs 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

Buildings Level 2 Building is valued using cost approach that reflects 414,967,665 122404,578 
the cost to the market participants to construct assets 
of comparable utility and age, adjusted for 
obsolescence and depreciation. Significant inputs 
include estimated construction costs and other 
ancillary expenditure. 

Plant and machinery Level 2 Plant and machinery is valued using cost approach 411,930,000 917,277751 
that reflects the cost to the market participants to 
construct or acquire machinery of comparable utility 
and age, adjusted for obsolescence and depreciation. 
Significant inputs include estimated 
construction/acquisition costs and other ancillary 
expenditure. 

45.2.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements 

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements of financial instruments as at the reporting date. 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 
Rupees Rupees 

46 MORTGAGES AND CHARGES 

Hypothecation of fixed assets 1,073,666,667 1,901,666,667 
Hypothecation of current assets 1,588,333,334 1,988,333,334 

47 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 

The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief executive, directors and executives on account of managerial 
remuneration, allowances and perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such directors and executives is as 
follows: 

30-Jun-25 
Chief Executive Directors Executives 

Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Remuneration 4,600,008 2,743,200 
Perquisites 2,299,992 1,371,600 
Meeting fee 60,000 
Post employment benefits - 483,436 

6,960,000 4,598,236 

Number of persons 2 1 

30-Jun-24 
Chief Executive Directors Executives 

Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Remuneration 5,280,000 2,743,200 
Perquisites 2,640,000 2,534,300 
Meeting fee 105,000 
Post employment benefits - 342,900 

8,025,000 5,620,400 

Number of persons 2 1 

 

47.1 Chief executive and executives have been provided with free use of the Company's vehicles. 

47.2 No remuneration has been paid to non-executive directors, with the exception of meeting fee. 
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48 SEGMENT REPORTING 

An operating segment is a component of an entity: 

(a) that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses 
relating to transactions with other components of the same entity), 

(b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and 

(C) for which discrete financial information is available, 

The Company is a single operating segment. All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. All sales of the 
Company have originated from Pakistan. 

48.1 Information about major customers 

Revenue derived from six (30-Jun-24: nil) individual significant external customers, to whom sales in excess of 10% of the 
Company's total sales were made during the year, amounts to Rs. 13.4 million. (30-Jun-24: Rs. nil). 

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Number of spindles installed No. 51,840 51,840 
Plant capacity on the basis of utilization converted into 80s count Kgs 3,054,796 3,054,796 
Actual production converted into 80s count Kgs 898,712 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24 

Total number of employees 60 89 
Average number of employees 61 327 

RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT 

As at the reporting date, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash generating units are equal to or exceed their carrying amounts. 
unless stated otherwise in these financial statements. 

52 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

There are no events after the reporting period that require adjustment or disclosure in these financial statements. 

53 CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERROR 

Following the adoption of Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes under lAS 12, lAS 37 and 
IFRIC 21 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan vide Circular 07 of 2024 dated 15 May 2024, the Company 
reassessed previously recognized deferred taxes and necessary adjustments were made to align with the effective rate of current 
tax under the new accounting policy. 

Due to a calculation error, the amount of adjustment to opening balance of retained earnings/accumulated losses, of the earliest 
period presented in the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024, in respect of deferred taxation included in revaluation 
reserve, was short by Rs. 17.12 million. The error has been corrected retrospectively by adjusting the opening balance of 
revaluation reserve and retained earnings/accumulated losses as at 01 July 2023. 

The amount of the correction for each prior period presented in these financial statements for each financial statement line item 
affected and for the basic earnings per share is as follows: 

Financial statement line item Nature of impact 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23 
Rupees Rupees 

Revaluation reserve Debit 17,123,911 17,123,911 
Retained earnings/accumulated losses Credit 17,123,911 17,123,911 
Earnings per share No impact 

49 

50 

51 
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54 GENERAL 

Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, there were 
no significant reclassifications during the year. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
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
 -2


 i
 ii

 iii
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